
Planning Commission Meeting Agenda,  

Monday December 4, 2023 - 6:00 PM 
Cologne Community Center, 1211 Village Parkway 

Vision Statement 
The City of Cologne is a vibrant small town that respects its heritage, embraces 

its future and offers a high quality of life for all who live, work and visit our 
community. 

                          Chairperson:    Bernie Shambour                
            Commissioner:     Vickie Selness 
            Commissioner:     Kevin Fafinski 
            Commissioner:   Jeri Bowers 
            City Council Liaison:   Carol Szaroletta 

 
NOTE: AGENDA ITEMS ARE APPROXIMATE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE ACCORDING TO LENGTH OF 
DISCUSSION. TO ENSURE THAT YOU ARE PRESENT FOR ITEMS OF INTEREST, PLEASE ARRIVE AT 6:00 PM. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ADOPT AGENDA 
4. PLANNING COMMISSION BUSINESS 

a. November 6, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
b. Fritz Field Storage Shelter Site Plan Review 

i. Shelter Location 
ii. Shelter Specifications 

c. PUBLIC HEARING: C-2 District Storage Text Amendment 
d. C-2 Text Amendment 

i. Collaborative Planning Memo 
ii. C-2 Text Amendment – Clean 

iii. C-2 Text Amendment - Redline  
 

5. BOARD REPORTS  
 

6. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

7.  ADJOURN 
 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  

Monday November 6, 2023 - 6:00 PM 
Cologne Community Center, 1211 Village Parkway 

Vision Statement 
The City of Cologne is a vibrant small town that respects its heritage, embraces 

its future and offers a high quality of life for all who live, work and visit our 
community. 

                          Chairperson:     Bernie Shambour                
            Commissioner:     Vickie Selness 
            Commissioner:     Jeri Bowers 
            City Council Liaison:  Carol Szaroletta 
            Commissioner:     Kevin Fafinski 

 
NOTE: AGENDA ITEMS ARE APPROXIMATE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE ACCORDING TO LENGTH OF 
DISCUSSION. TO ENSURE THAT YOU ARE PRESENT FOR ITEMS OF INTEREST, PLEASE ARRIVE AT 6:00 PM. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

Chairperson Shambour called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM with Commissioners 
Selness and Bowers present.  Commissioner Fafinski and City Council Liaison Carol 
Szaroletta were absent.  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ADOPT AGENDA 

Motion by Commissioner Bowers to adopt the agenda as presented, second by 
Commissioner Selness.  Motion carried 3-0. 
 

4. PLANNING COMMISSION BUSINESS 
a. October 2, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

 
Motion by Commissioner Bowers to approve the September 2nd, 2023 Planning 
Commission Minutes, second by Commissioner Selness.  Motion carried 3-0. 
 

b. Freedom Storage Site Plan Review 
Chairperson Shambour reviewed the Planning and Zoning Application received 
requesting to add additional storage units to the existing storage facility.  He also 
reviewed the Memo from Cindy Nash, City Planner with comments on the Site Plan and 
request.  Commissioners discussed issues such as lighting, fencing and lot coverage.  
After discussion Commissioner Bowers made a motion to approve Planning 



Commission Resolution 23-02 Amending a Site Plan for Freedom Storage, second by 
Commissioner Selness.  Motion carried 3-0. 
 
 

5. BOARD REPORTS  
Chairperson Shambour asked fellow Commissioners to give consideration to asking the 
City Council to work with the City Administrator to revise zoning ordinance 153.007 
under Section B Permitted Uses to add Indoor Storage.  Noting that many of the 
properties already are used for storage and this would bring them into compliance.  
Discussion was had on the difficulty of enforcing, Ordinance Review and the process 
that occurs when changing an ordinance.   
Administrator Dickson advised that should the Planning Commission move forward with 
the request, more in depth information would be provided to the Commissioners from 
the City Planner and City Staff, a public hearing would be held and the Planning 
Commissioners would have the opportunity to vote on any proposed ordinance 
changes.  
After discussion Chairperson Shambour made a motion to make a recommendation to 
city staff and city council to review city Ordinance 153.007 Section B to add under 
permitted uses “and indoor storage” and to include due process and a public hearing to 
be reviewed by the Planning Commission, second by Commissioner Bowers.  Motion 
carried 3-0. 
 
Administrator Dickson is working on setting a meeting with HKGi and the Planning 
Commission.   

 
6. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
7.  ADJOURN 

 
Motion by Commissioner Bowers to adjourn at 7:00 PM, second by Commissioner 
Szaroletta. Motion carried 3-0. 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted:     Attest: 

 

__________________________  ___________________________ 

Michelle M Morrison, City Clerk   Bernie Shambour, Chairperson 

 









































 

 
PO Box 251, Medina, MN  55340  1 
763-473-0569 
 

Collaborative Planning, LLC 
 

Memorandum 

To:   Cologne Planning Commission 
From:   Cindy Nash, AICP, EDFP 
Date:  November 29 2023 
Subject: Ordinance Amendment – Storage in C-2 Zoning District as a Permitted Principal 

Use of Property 

 

The C-2 Central Business District zoning district intended purpose is to “provide for the unique layout 
and character of a traditional central business district with retail and professional office functions and 
mixed uses”.    At the November 2023 Planning Commission meeting, there was discussion regarding 
the consideration of permitting storage as a permitted principal use of a building in this zoning district. 

This is different from the accessory use of storage that many businesses may have as an ongoing part of 
their business affairs.  Any given type of business may have some portion of its building being used to 
store items that are necessary for the customary operation of their business but that would not exist if 
the business that was occurring there did not also exist.  Examples of this are as follows: 

 Closet for cleaning supplies 
 Cabinets in a breakroom for coffee or an office supply closet 
 Room where inventory is kept before it is placed on shelves for sale. 

 
For purposes of this memo, storage would be the principal use of the building.  This may be to store 
personal or business items but where there is not an otherwise permitted principal use for the property 
such as a professional office, retail store, or other use permitted within the district.   
 
November 6, 2023 Planning Commission Minutes/Action Item 
 
At the November 6th meeting, a motion was made to “review city Ordinance 153.007 Section B to add 
under permitted uses “and indoor storage” and to include due process and a public hearing to be 
reviewed by the Planning Commission”.  Section 153.007 of the Zoning Ordinance is related to 
Nonconforming Uses and Structures and is not related to any specific types of uses.  It appeared the 
intent was to consider making “indoor storage” a permitted use in the C-2 zoning district, so the draft 
ordinance reflects that interpretation of intent. 
 
 
 



 

 
PO Box 251, Medina, MN  55340  2 
763-473-0569 
 

Typical Zoning Districts for Storage Uses 

Most zoning ordinances only permit storage uses within those zoning districts that are not in a traditional 
downtown, typically in an industrial zoning district. 

Downtown Plan 

The City is currently developing a Downtown Plan with the assistance of HKGI. A primary reason for 
preparing a downtown plan is to identify potential improvements to the downtown and the steps 
necessary to achieve those improvements to have a thriving downtown filled with businesses and 
activity.  In my past experience, buildings that are underutilized in that they do not contribute to a 
thriving place that brings people downtown become one of the focuses for improvement in the plan.  
The use of buildings for storage would typically be considered an underutilized space in the context of 
a Downtown Plan and there are then typically recommendations in the plan document for addressing 
these underutilized spaces.   

Recommendation 

I recommend that the Planning Commission recommend denial of the proposed ordinance amendment 
that would add “storage” as a permitted principal use in the C-2 Zoning District.   

As the Downtown Plan is in the process of being prepared, it is premature to make a significant change 
to the Zoning Ordinance that may be in conflict with any ultimate recommendations that are in the 
Downtown Plan.  Any existing storage principal uses are “non-conforming” which restricts their 
expansion on the properties that currently contain them, but also prohibits the establishment of new 
“storage” uses on other properties.  If an amendment was made to the ordinance, storage would be a 
conforming use and both existing uses could be expanded or new storage uses created (including mini-
storage). 

Further, in order to keep storage uses from the Paul Avenue N corridor, the draft ordinance restricts this 
proposed permitted use from being eligible to be used for properties that have frontage on Paul Avenue 
North. However, it is not typical to restrict a permitted use from occurring within certain portions of a 
zoning district. 

 



1 
 

CITY OF COLOGNE 
CARVER COUNTY 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 172 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF COLOGNE ZONING ORDINANCE 
RELATED TO STORAGE IN THE C-2 ZONING DISTRICT  

 
 
The City Council of Cologne, Minnesota ordains: 
 
 
SECTION 1.  RESCIND AND REPLACE SECTION.  Section 153.039 of the Cologne Zoning 
Ordinance is hereby rescinded and a new Section 153.039 is added as follows:   
 

§ 153.039  C-2 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT. 

   (A)   Purpose.  In addition to the purposes stated in § 153.002, it is intended that the C-
2 District provide for the unique layout and character of a traditional central business 
district with retail and professional office functions and other mixed uses. 

   (B)   Permitted uses. 

      (1)   Retail sales conducted within structures, but excluding automobile and 
motorized equipment sales, truck stops, gasoline and fuel sales, drive-through restaurants 
and adult-oriented businesses. 

      (2)   Repair and service conducted within structures, but excluding automobile and 
motorized equipment repair. 

      (3)   Professional and business offices. 

      (4)   Legal, nonconforming residences and accessory uses. 

      (5)   Accessory apartments. 

      (6)   Theaters and recreational businesses conducted within structures, but excluding 
adult-oriented businesses. 

      (7)   Daycare centers. 

      (8)   Cabinet making and sales showroom. 

      (9)  Indoor storage of business or personal property as a principal use of properties 
that do not have frontage on Paul Ave N.  

   (C)   Interim uses. 

      (1)   Tractor trailer parking. 



2 
 

      (2)   Masonry construction trade business and showroom. 

      (3)   Churches and pre-schools in renovated pre-existing commercial structures, 
located on A-Minor Arterial Highways as depicted on figure four of the City of Cologne 
2030 Comprehensive Plan. 

      (4)   Used automobile sales as an accessory use to legal nonconforming automobile 
body repair businesses. 

 
SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE  
This ordinance becomes effective on the date of its publication, or upon the publication of a 
summary of the ordinance as provided by Minn. Stat. § 412.191, subd. 4, as it may be amended 
from time to time, which meets the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 331A.01, subd. 10, as it may be 
amended from time to time. 
 
SECTION 3. REPEALER 
All prior ordinances to the extent that they are inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this 
Ordinance, shall be deemed repealed after the effective date of this Ordinance with regard to those 
inconsistent terms and provisions. 
 
 
Passed by the City Council of Cologne this _______ day of _________, 2023. 
 
 
 
       Approved:     
 
             

Matt Lein 
Mayor 

Attested:   
 
     
Michelle Morrison 
City Clerk 
 
 



 

§ 153.039  C-2 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT. 

   (A)   Purpose.  In addition to the purposes stated in § 153.002, it is intended that the C-2 
District provide for the unique layout and character of a traditional central business district 
with retail and professional office functions and other mixed uses. 

   (B)   Permitted uses. 

      (1)   Retail sales conducted within structures, but excluding automobile and motorized 
equipment sales, truck stops, gasoline and fuel sales, drive-through restaurants and adult-
oriented businesses. 

      (2)   Repair and service conducted within structures, but excluding automobile and 
motorized equipment repair. 

      (3)   Professional and business offices. 

      (4)   Legal, nonconforming residences and accessory uses. 

      (5)   Accessory apartments. 

      (6)   Theaters and recreational businesses conducted within structures, but excluding 
adult-oriented businesses. 

      (7)   Daycare centers. 

      (8)   Cabinet making and sales showroom. 

      (9)  Indoor storage of business or personal property as a principal use of properties that 
do not have frontage on Paul Ave N.  

   (C)   Interim uses. 

      (1)   Tractor trailer parking. 

      (2)   Masonry construction trade business and showroom. 

      (3)   Churches and pre-schools in renovated pre-existing commercial structures, located 
on A-Minor Arterial Highways as depicted on figure four of the City of Cologne 2030 
Comprehensive Plan. 

      (4)   Used automobile sales as an accessory use to legal nonconforming automobile body 
repair businesses. 


	Planning Commission Agenda December 4, 2023
	November 6, 2023 Minutes
	Ball Field Aerial
	Shelter Location
	Hoop Shed Specs
	Memo C2 Storage Nov2023
	Ordinance Amend storage C2 d1 clean
	Storage C2 Redline

